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be resumed in the Falkland Islands Dependencies ; that the personnel,
which included administrative officials, had already arrived ; that
fully-equipped bases had been established ; and that the ]’_"ﬁ“'f.}fi‘]’]
were expected to remain in the Antarctic for a :'nn\:-l'-l'.:‘hll' period,
No information has vet been received as to the reaction of the
Argentine Government to this announcement,

254. Tn July 1944 the Ministerio de Marina at Buenos Aires
published a chart (No. 100) of Deception Island bearing tb:- t:f!P,E
" Repiiblica Argentina, Océano glacial Antdrtico, Isla Decepeion. . . .
This Chart is obviously based very largely on Admiralty Chart
No. 3205, which, in turn, was based on a French Government Chart
of 1912, The sub-title, however, implies that the Argentine chart
is a direct result of the visits of the Primero de Mayo in 1942 and
1943. The publication of this official document may be regarded
as a further provocative measure by the Argentine Government, and
is one which should be taken into consideration when the formal
protest mentioned above is made.

255. During the summer of 1944 a series of inter-departmental
meetings were held to consider future policy and to make arrange-
ments for extending the scope of the operations. The difficulty of
obtaining a suitable ship seriously restricted the formulation of
precise plans, but it was decided to attempt to establish a new base
at Hope Bay, to continue the occupation of Deception Island and
Port Lockroy throughout 1945, and to occupy a small new base on
Signy Island for a short period during the summer of 1944-45. In
order to facilitate exploration down the little-known east coast of
Graham Land, which has never been closely examined by a British
expedition, it was decided to provide dogs and sl-."ti;.:in;.:'f'qnipm(?nt
for the use of the party at Hope Bay. It was not, however, until
the end of September 1944 that the Newfoundland sealing steamer
Eagle was made available and it became possible to proceed with
these plans. H.M.S. William Scoresby and the Filzroy were also
made available to assist with the operations in the southern summer
of 1944-45,

255A. On January Ist 1945 the Buenos Aires press announced
that the transport Chaco would shortly be taking reliefs to the
meteorological station on Laurie Island : instructions were provided
for philatelists interested in receiving correspondence cancelled
with the South Orkney postmark. No evidence had been received
by the end of January that the Argentine Government cuntvmplatéd
any further Antarctic activities during the summer of 1944-45
he Fitzroy, accompanied by H.M.S. William Scoreshy, left Port
Stanley for the south on January 23rd, and the Eagle left on the
following day. The first two ships proceeded, on rf“vbru’irv 2nd
from Deception Island to Port Lockroy to r-:i1:h:irk ]n.‘rémlmh(.)l -;md'
stores for Hope Bay. On February 7th. Lt Cdr, J W. S Marr
;lr-kfwl to be relieved of the command of the t'X]){‘f[i(i‘i)‘I] Uﬁ \llﬂll.lnd.‘
of ill-health. The wisdom of his decision was confirmed E!h th .
medical {lf‘mf_«r"\\'ho reported that Marr had lZTi)“Z!h.‘-'-l"{'l 'm.(i fl-‘qut 1_*:
was considered imperative to take him to Port Stanley in‘lme-l' ‘t.s[l
.'\l"t.'“rtilll.'._‘.l'\' HH..\I_S, William Scoreshy was instmctt-;i to un;[laagt ;':r
{]:‘1‘: task. ,-“hf{ reached the Falkland Islands on .lﬂ‘t*hruar —'ui;t]e
.-'\Ill'T ;‘}] ':r‘w 1] b L}f”’f’pilfql in Port Stanley, ].imit.~(’mnnnmlir \fal}r.

returnec 0 tvll.-‘ nited Kingdom and Captai ' oy =y
Canadian I-.n;nn(-.erf;, was appointed to ,qucp_f._-f_s;llll}]i:; i;{‘iit)l::i' [{ayz.l]
the shore bases. The Eagle arrived at Hope Bay on Feh . nan{) ot
and a new base was established there. On the same }-L ')rtmr_v 12th,
reached S;i.t]d{_‘fj{)fl'] H;i_\-’ on Coronation Island jﬁ‘{||:: L;{"t}h? Fiflfﬂ}'
A hut was erected, but, owing to shortage of perse .|' i .)l“kncys._
party was left on the island. The perconne e Lo 0 Occupation
B! s ahhe 4 ..1¢ personnel of the shore statione has
een strengthened by the addition of five extra men from fons has
Kingdom and three Falkland Islanders ln‘.i;lui‘}' tln' A mtad
to twenty-one. For convenience of ‘r:;-'fc;‘vl.u"{ L‘(] “ oal shore staff
been given code letters as follows :  Port [l- 1{ four ha_x‘r?s have
- Tt Lockroy (A), Deception
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249, TR — .

n-‘r-iI 11(“)-”\1‘”!)““1\ I7th the two ships left Port Lockroy and
th_r.. L n_ ele .Jll.rlﬁ ]_hl;!!t_t'.s in the Palmer .*\t‘t‘lli;“'li‘-i-:“. A record of
her .m?‘; '11':|I1LI'I:I\NIt II“ ll‘r“..hmil\r'\; 1943 (paragraph 240) was found

St e a Island), and this was removed. The ships

e tlod] iz ST R L 4 & FEIROVEQ. ships then
:“ll‘l l\ I ]‘]'_.l; JRr Island for the South Orkneys. Signy [ht;{!t'ﬂl was
(1::1::,‘---0,11 (“' ’:'l,l;‘lr'\.tzl.\{' The British marks left there by H.M.S.
_I;M ;‘ :‘ {'\”_ : f“{.' .m 1943 (paragraph 237) were found to be untouched,
Cex IL'” t-';' ml""]" marks were seen there. The ships reached South
eorgia on Iebruary 24th and returned to P R
February 29th. ; rmed to Port Stanley on

250.. It was learncd later that the Argentine transport Pampa
h:vl_r'. visited [.:H_lll'lt" Island on February 20th (i.e. one day before the
Fitzroy and William Scoresby were at Signy Island). The Pmuf)ri
apy I‘:‘-Il'l'l'lllv\_' r_‘_nnﬁnt‘ti her activities to the relief of the meteorological
staff, and since the ships did not meet, there was fortunately no
necessity to implement the instructions outlined in paragraph 244.

251. In order to counter the Argentine move in establishing a
permanent post office on Laurie Island in November 1941, a prm:ctlhrc
clearly based on the belief that such action demonstrates permanent
administration (paragraph 229), a special series of postage stamps
was issued for the use of the British establishments. These were
Falkland Island stamps, overprinted with the names South Georgia,
South Shetland Islands, South Orkney Islands and Graham Land.
he Bureau of the International Postal Union at Berne was informed
of the issue of these stamps, and the Bureau notified postal adminis-
trations in a circular letter dated July 14th 1944. In accordancé with
the practice which has been followed since the German occupation
of southern France, specimens were sent directly from the General
Post Office in London to the postal administrations of non-enemy
countries, including Argentina and Chile, the Foreign Office having
agreed to the war-time practice in this case.* As a further act of
sovereignty, the Governor of the Falkland Islands swore in
Lieut.-Commander J. W. S. Marr and Mr. W. R. Flett as Magistrates
for Graham Land, the South Orkneys and the South Shetlands.

052 H.M.S. William Scoresby sailed again on March 14th to
convey further stores to the two bases. On March 22nd a landing
was made at Cape Renard on the mainland of Graham Land. The
Union Jack was erected and documents recording the visit were
deposited. It had been proposed, if circumstances permitted, that
she should also pay a formal call on Laurie Island, as had been
done by H.M.S. Carnarvon Castle in 1943 (paragraph 237), but this
project had to be abandoned owing to thick weather and shortage
of fuel. H.M.S. William Scoresby returned to Port Stanley and then
left on April 12th for a third visit to the Dependencies, carrying
further stores and mail. She reached Deception Island on April 16th
and Port Lockroy on the following day, returning to Port Stanley on
April 24th.

053, It had been agreed that, when the season was well advanced
and the British bases were firmly established, Sir D. Kelly should
notify the Argentine Government of all these developments and
protest against the activities of the Primero de Mayo in 1943. How-
ever, in view of the confused political situation in Argentina 1n
March 1944, it seemed important that any publicity should be post-
poned until a decision should be reached gegarqmg recognition or
non-recognition of General Farrell's Admimstration. On the other
hand, the arrival in this country of letters bearing the special over-
printed stamps aroused considerable interest among philatelists,
and it was agreed on March 7th that a brief press announcement
would have to be made. [t was also decided that the proposed
protest to the Argentine Government should be withheld until
| relations with that Government had been restored. Accord-
a press an nouncement was released to the effect
been made for scientific and survey work to

norma
ingly, on April 24th,
that arrangements had

¢ The normal practice of n tifying the International Bureau of the opening of new past offices
has been suspendod during the war
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d plans for roposed
p ' . : 943 detailed plans for the proposes
244. During the summer ol 194 ”r.“t{‘.”mmim{]”. T S.
It was agreed that the main
' ed than

parties of oceupation ui'rw fIlI;w.rll ”11' -:_“"I
Marr, R.N.V.R., was selected as leade gl
:-:-i--. { |l\~.;1.~; rather to establish parties on the _"‘.!_',‘_‘.‘Ill“ : Imfm!i:'i-s vk
to denv access to them to similar Argentine o1 "'_H tl‘”-] [l-‘;'ithi; -1 narks.
foreign marks found were to be erased and I"_‘i""“'”] 23 % .-} ’ uld they
e members of the shore ]l;lI'lii‘H .'tilw had "Nr].".:.l lf:tlhi ‘:li(-}f']ndw; _t”u
meet an Argentine or Chilean expedition :|I1\'\\'I|(-1_L- in t'_u. ‘:1. II: ‘rli(l
assert British sovereignty by all means short of violent force L
not seem likely that they would meet any such Aty hm.(;t”f f)l'l
was some evidence to suggest that Argentine El’.‘t!f-?.l? m t'}'“"h'{‘d.t‘h‘
1943-44 would be confined to the usual annual visit Ir.s n‘hf-u. e (]
personnel at Laurie Island, and that the Chilean (:t.l\'r-l'l.l,llﬂll.}'ll t]ld(
failed to obtain a suitable ship (paragraph 268). It was lll“lf‘l:
decided that no communication should be made to the (.r;l\‘ffrrxﬂlcl_nts
of Argentina, Chile or the United States until the parties of ot tttl[.:d?.l(}l?
had reached the islands, and that the substance and timing of any
communication which might then have to be made would depend
upon developments,

245. The special position at South Georgia necessitated separate
instructions for the Officer Commanding the South Georgia Defence
Force in the unlikely event of an Argentine party landing and
attempting to perform acts of sovereignty there. At South h‘vr)rg‘:’a
it was considered that the local representatives of His .\i:q-‘;‘:«'t}'_S
Government should use all the force at their disposal to uphold their
authority over the island.

246. In view of the visit of the Primero de Maya to Graham Land
in March 1943 (paragraphs 240-241), the occupation of Graham Land
by British personnel was considered to be of greater mmportance than
the occupation of Signy Island. The final plan therefore envisaged
the establishment of occupation parties at Deception Island and at
Hope Bay (on the mainland of Graham Land). A visit was to be
made to Signy Island, but arrangements to occupy that island had
to be postponed until the season 1944-45.

247. The members of the shore parties, fourteen in number, left
Great Britain on December 16th 1943, and arrived at Port Stanley on
January 28th 1944* H.M.S. Bransfield (ex Veslekari) which was
originally intended to convey them to their bases in the Depend-
encies, fit"\'i‘llllﬁll‘(l a serions defect, and as repairs would have taken
too long, it was decided to send them to the Falkland Islands by
troop ship. The Admiralty had made H.M.S. Wiliiam Scoresby
available for the operations in the Dependencies, and on January 29th
the shore parties left Port Stanley on board H.M.S. William Scoresby
and S.S. Fitzroy. A base was established at Deception Island on
February 6th. "It was confirmed that the British marks which had
been left on this island by H.M.S, Carnarvon Casile in March 1943
had been removed and Argentine marks substituted (paragraph 240).
These Argentine marks WETE 1N turn removed.

248. The plan to establish a base on the mainland of Graham
Land unfortunately had to be abandoned owing to unfavourable
ice conditions, which prevented the Fitzroy from approaching Hope
Bay., H.MLS. William Scoresby was able to reach the shore, Ent her
Cargo capacity was too small to allow relaying the cargo from the
1~:.’:r~_1'.| T'he mainland coast was then E::rt"l'ull\,‘ searched from
Antarctic Sound south-westwards to Andvord Bay, but no suitable
site for a base could be found. On February 11th the t\\l'o w‘i]i 5
arrived at Port Lockroy, in the Palmer .:\ri;:hipvlngc'l and it‘ wgq
decided to r--_ai::h[is‘l'| the main base there. Port Luck;ov i.s one u}
the best harbours in the region.  Although of considerable political

located either for

\':-|‘I|n-_-_r‘;~ a site for administrative acts, it is not well
scientilic work or as a base for exploratory journeys, At Port Lockroy
an ;\I‘la;(‘lli_lltlr: flag was found, and also a bronze cylinder (‘un'rilinl'u-\r
an Argentine document laying claim to ttt'l'ituﬁr‘s I)-‘in;f bu(twé:.lﬁ

longs. 25° W. and 68° 34’ W., soutl af BOCQ fon.
These marks were removed. ' ot lat. 60°S. (ses paragraph 240).

* During the war these ¢ §
L f & Wi = UPCTatons have been o i .
¥ b 1 conducted under t)e secrot code word T abarin,"
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war. Argentine and Chilean aspirations in the Antarctic are dis-
Cusse d\ in detail, and the rivalry and distrust between them in this
i;)n?n:ilmn are clearly brought out* The Ar;‘:vniin% erased the
(']n’lll:' 1 _n]hnkT 4[1 !h-*crplmn Island with the cognisance of the

jileans, but endeavoured to keep secret from the latter the fact that
on the eve of departure, they also restored the Argentine ‘marks llr';
!s_an'.e'nultin;;_ this report, the British Naval Attaché at H'ar;t.i:mﬂ
stressed the importance of not disclosing that His \'laiest\,"q‘ﬁt)\'cnl-
ment have obtained possession of this document. - -

241. Capitan Cérdovez's report shows that unfavourable weather
prevented the Primero de Mayo from carrying out any hydrographic
work, but that navigational beacons were erected in the Melchior
Islands, at Port Lockroy and in Neny Fjord. The scientific instru-
mt-nTt's and equipment which the Americans had been forced to abandon
at Neny Fjord in 1941 (paragraph 278) were embarked in accordance
with a request from the United States Embassy at Buenos Aires.}
On return of the expedition to Buenos Aires, the Argentine Govern-
ment suppressed all public announcements regarding the removal
of the Argentine emblems from Deception Island and their replace-
ment by British emblems. However, at least one newspaper ublished
a brief statement that the Primero de Mayo had comp. eted her
expedition, that she had found an abandoned factory on Deception
Island and that the Argentine flag had been erased.

042 When in February 1944 H.M.S. William Scoresby visited
Port Lf)t‘krny_ {puragmph 248), she found a cylinder containing an
Argentine claim to sovereignty over the area between longs. 25° W

" and 68° 34’ W., south of lat. 60°S. This claim must have been

deposited by the Primero de Mayo on March 1st or 2nd 1943 (see
paragraph 240). Thus, although the Argentine Government have
put forward no official claim to Graham Land by name, they have
done so several times by implication. The voyage of the Primero
de Mayo and the acts performed by her commander obviously
indicate that the Argentine Government are preparing to carry out
a policy of penetration and that they regard as Argentine the whole
of this peninsula and the adjacent islands (se Appendix VIIL,
pp. 177-178).

943. British Occupation, 1944. The first of the two proposals
approved by the War Cabinet on January 28th 1943 (paragraph 236)
had been carried out by the voyage of H.M.S. Carnarvon Castle.
Before proceeding with the second proposal, namely the occupation
of the threatened islands, His Majesty’s ;\n}hassador at Buenos
Aires was again consulted with a view to estimating the probable
reaction of the new revolutionary government which had since come
into power in Buenos Aires. Sir D. Kelly expressed his opmion that
the risks involved should be accepted, but that action should be
early, effective and carried out with absolutely secrecy. He further
advised that Laurie Island should be avoided. After protracted
discussions it was decided on May 27th to send parties of occupation
to Deception Island and to Signy —Islantl. but not to Laurie !s.lam%,‘
It was realised that the omission ol the latter might result in its loss
to the British Empire, but His Majesty s (_m\';jmrm.'nt_ were nutl at
that time prepared 1o remove the Argentines by (nrllh.c_,t thus
irretrieveably cOMPromising relations with Argentina, and 1 ;\_.a::
obviously impractical to send a British party of occupation tolive

alongside the Argentines.

1044, the Argentine Government suggested to the Chilean
p ® [t is perhaps f"l_"_‘"‘lt:‘“:;‘l'.:r::‘;c:llt:;]rlttj:;':;ittl; .}«Etth'munl of their long 11||.l_»-l..mull'nk_ boundary
l'-m'mulmtl‘t s .ml;.‘-? "h.- Channoel "' as petween two friendly -mm:]’n-s' and without having
dispute u-.niu.:\: .lt; {__-IIP;”" “!‘"Lh they had A._;,,,&-d gpon in 1938, The Argentinge (:. -ununlcnl
rocourse to the o ."}l:-L1 anly to insist on secognition of their soveraignty over Tsln Nueva (New
ndded that thoy _“h.’ llu-H ‘r.lu- Chilean Government replied stating that they considered th\.-
Istand). 10 ;\"]":I:t-lh; ;1-I\1'1‘ ;_{ui. & Chile could not, in apy circumstances, agree to Argentina s
arbitration ShoLL Ak Bucva (AS 4749/3068/0 and o 305/3968/9 of 1944).
i‘ml.“:'-;'.l‘ s y ; {id not reach the United States until l-‘x‘ii‘_"‘_‘h"r 1644, and then "‘“!.Y “er{.llmlil_'l.lf.'
t These items Qi Seen made by State Department officials at the Argentine Fareign Office.
scriea of enquit: B "]'m, would have been feturned had not a Curator of the Smithsonian
:l l‘-’_'i‘f':“":'mrr_"é:;‘,t_,,al IL,:,mF-‘ of the American equipment while visiting & Buenos Alres Mitseum.
natitution TOCH 3
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agstaffs ing the Union

party landed on Signy Island to erect ”‘!'gsm]f:ﬁ.]]f&fi;y:nc%ay the. ahip
Jack and to leave a record of the visit. I'he fo & r?v Yohnd The
called at the Argentine meteorological station ofv dunot G wishs &
s i i H]”\CWWW?H }(Tm‘.\m' h:tl"r:rm:t};?\i:*]:;n'?nv disposition to
demonstration of force i the Argentines show ’B' o
resist a landing, for His Majesty’s Ambassador ’at uenos A .

3 e at anv : »d clash would do serious an
expressed his opinion that any armed (..1:1_8 G G =g
asting damage to Anglo-Argentine relations. 1e r.l:.p_‘
Ild:::;;? Il:‘al:l:‘uf however, was most cordial, and no rqfc:r?llc}e?twtegg
made to the subject of sovereignty. It was explainec tu}&l thef
Carnarvon Castle was cruising in the Dependencies to find out whe ﬂ
the anchorages were being used by the enemy. The. z\_rg(-‘ntmfé ti:i
was flying over the station. His Majesty’s Ambassador 1n{0?neﬂ ;
Argentine Foreign Minister of tl_u: visit nf_liur (_?armfrvo‘n *,as e ?
Deception Island and assured him that His Majesty's Governmen
had no intention of allowing their title to go by default or to be
challenged.

238. To this the Argentine Foreign Minister replied that the
Argentine Government considered that its claims, inkerited from
Spain, were absolutely justified, and, in a mr-morandulrp .of
February 15th, the Argentine Government rc-afﬁ.rmed its
sovereign rights over all Antaretic lands and dependencies south of
lat. 60° S. and between longs. 25° W. and 68° 34’ W.. expressed
regret at the removal of Argentine emblems on Deception Island, and
opposed the ““ most formal resistance "’ to jurisdictional acts carried
out by British officials. At the same time it was reported that the
Argentine Government had again formulated reserves with the
International Postal Union over the inclusion of the Falkland
Islands and Dependencies in the ratification by the United Kingdom
of an agreement relating to letters and packages,

239. His Majesty's Government replied to the Argentine memo-
randum of February 15th by a memorandum, dated April 7th,
setting forth their title to the Falkland Islands Dependencies* and
reciting Argentine infringements of that title. When, on April 12th,
Sir D. Kelly presented this document to the Argentine Minister for
Foreign Affairs, he stated that when the Primero deo Mayo visited
Deception Island in 1942, her Captain should have seen that the
destruction of certain installations by His Majesty's ships on a previous
visit was a clear indication that His Majesty’s Government claimed
sovercignty. The visit referred to was that of H.M.S, Queen of
Bermuda in March 1941 (paragraph 176). The Argentine Minister
made no comment on this point, '

240. Meanwhile the Primero de Mayo (Capitdn de Fragata S
Harriague) had engaged in a second expedition. in which two Chilean
naval officers and one civilian were invited to participate. Sailip
on February 4th 1943, the ship visited the Melchior Islands ‘in thge
Palmer Archipelago, Port Lockroy (another anchorage in the Palmer
Archipelago), and Marguerite Bay (where the expedition \'iéited th
United States Antarctic Service East Base " in Neny F'onlj 3
then returned to Deception Island. There the (‘mhmajnd‘r' -
unpleasantly surprised to discover that the ;\rgentin’e fla wh:?ch ‘:I?S
crew of the transport had painted on her Jast ‘;'isitg had bee::

obliterated and replaced by the British flag, T} iti
the refore, were in turn removed and the .-\rgintin;(Il-Brn\:rlasgr:ml?Ietms'
Che ship left Deception Island on e Painted.

‘ March 11t} - the A i
Government have not yet seen fit to avow this 'to His ] sy
Government. A full report of the activi o o tO'H]S Majestv :

was subsequently obtained confide : Sapi
bsequently of ntially from Capit ;
the senior C ]11I(>an‘0tﬁf:er who accompanied the e;i w'{{l?t'cordoveg'
report provides evidence of unsucce Lnl tlmn' Ihl?
1 the part o

the Argentines to enrol Chile’s co-operat:
- N - .‘ s ! s p
front to Great Britain on the subject of Antarctic élt;llri]rgusa;j’c;g:n:?ln
AT o e

r 9 - Wi
ould haye been made tha

of any fature memorandum n iy Presented in this

* A comsiderably stronprer British casg
rm the-basis

document, which thﬁul-_l not [
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pr-;]_mn-tl in June, setting out a brief historv o e ,

i) o b e b e e
f'"Q_“"'f_-".l_ whether there was any substance in {)i]p' )r(xs;g-:“:‘l:. 5 }0
rt';._:ardmu t-h" action alleged to have been taken by an J.\rl'«hn.t‘irw Iplpl' 5!
officer at Deception Island in January 1942 (Parilgrnl;l1 E}.an i

233. On September 2nd His Majesty’s Ambassador (Sir D. Kelly)
who had only recently received his mstructions demurred to the
immediate presentation of this note, and he was authorized to defer
presenting it for not more than two months. The I*‘ori-ign‘Oﬂirv legal
advisers strongly emphasised their opinion that, if the pn"«rn-f ﬁil;;:i-
tion was allowed to continue, the British title to the South ()Tiill";""
would become progressively weaker and the Argentine claim would be
strengthened ; in their view the suggested protest and the cxiqting
administrative measures were insufficient to safeguard the British
title, and some form of permanent occupation had become essential
to establish effective British possession ; from a legal point of view it
was questionable whether the steps which His Majesty's Govern-
ment had so far taken had done more than create an inchoate title
to the islands.

0F

234. At an inter-departmental meeting held on September 24th
1942,. it was decided that no useful purpose would be served by
delaying the written protest. Accordingly, Sir D. Kelly was instructed
on October 14th to present the note to the Argentine Government,
However, before he had had an opportunity to do so the matter was
again deferred while the question was raised whether the value of the
South Orkneys (and the South Shetlands) was sufficient to justify
continued resistance to Argentine claims and the more decisive
action with which His Majesty’s Government was now faced. The
Admiralty laid stress on the strategic value of the islands (para-
graph 53). The Colonial Office took the view that, though they had
little immediate economic importance to the Colonial Empire, their
potential importance was considerable, especially in view of the need
for strict control of whaling after the war and of their potential value
in respect of minerals, meteorological stations and polar air routes.
The interest of the Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries was confined
tosthe possible effects of Argentine encroachments on Antarctic
whaling operations. All of these Departments were agreed on the
importance of strongly resisting any attempt on the part of foreign

governments to contest the British title to areas in the Antarctic.

935. Meanwhile, it was learned on January st 1943 that the
Primero de Mayo would shortly sail again for the Antarctic and would
formally take possession in the name of the Argentine Government
of the South Orkney and South Shetland Islands. :

936, Brilish Countervailing Action, 1943-44.—Following the
announcement on January 9th 1943 that the Admiralty could make
H.M.S. Carnarvon Castle available for an Antarctic voyage, several
inter-departmental meetings were held in January and it was
decided that a round of visits to the islands of the Dependencies
should be made immediately in order to anticipate the Primero de
Mavo. It was recognised that this action would in itself be !nsufﬁme._nt
to secure the British ftitle, and that permanent occupation parties
would have to be sent out in the Autumn of 1943 to all the threatened
islands except, probably, Laurie Islagull{paragraph :ﬂ(l‘]‘. T'hese
proposals were approved by the War Cabinet on January 28th, and
the Dominion Governments Were informed of the circumstances of
the voyage.

9237. HM.S. Carnarvon Castle was dispatched from the Falkland
Islands on January 25th 1943. On January 30th a party landed at
Deception [sland, obliterated all traces of the Argentme visit in
1942 (paragraph 231), hoisted the Union Jack, and left a record of
the ship's visit. A writ stating that the lease had lapsed and ft'hqt the
buildings and plant had become Government property was pll}{]f{l
in a conspicuous place in one of the buildings. There were no incica-
tions of the station haying been visited or used by the enemy. I‘lu.z
ship then prucnedvtl to the South Orkneys, and on February 8th a
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i rt and

» the hope of Chilean suppo _
bé" Argentine Government annm_.m(f:ed in
al wireless operators would in future

: rted b

man the meteorological station at Laurie lsl_an(l‘th;i ‘:?:3 r?aprogentine);
the British Naval Attaché at Buenos Alrgs ir claim to the South
assumed that this action would strengthen the ally be tolerated by
Orkney Islands '* as such an act would not “0":? yDirector of Posts '
another owner.” In November 1941 the f.&rge:?nlr?;nent post office in i

B g Trophs anounced e cpening o3 P Joole

A the South Orkney Islands. e cr ;
Conventions et fnmmtlh' notified to post office administrations _generan%ghrriggf;];gg
Divers, Bulletin o pernotiona] Postal Union ;: a move obviously influenced by

229. Thus encouraged
Sa United States sympathy, th
e’ 3 August 1941 that Argentine nav

0. ¢ 1 ; Mgy i entine
Dec V2th 1641 that this action would be interpreted asa dcﬁpltlfo exe;crlsz !?tfi:;%tamps
A 5498/12/2 sovereignty. Letters from the new post office bore Argl

of 1942. post-marked ““ Islas Orcadas del Sud : Argentina.

230. Continued Argentine Inbransigence, 1942-43. It was thl_lrsl,
clear that if no action was taken to refute the Argentine move 1
setting up a post office, His Majesty’s Government wqulc}i)run a se;(i):;
risk of allowing Argentina gradually to establish a claim by occul;_: t'
which it would be difficult to contest, but that any representation
to Argentina might provoke a controversy which His Majesty's
Government were at that time particularly anxious to avoid. Inter-
A 178/12/2 departmental discussions took Elace in January and Feb_ru‘ar}'«' 1%12-
o 1pas The Foreign Office pointed out that a call by one of His Majesty’s ships
at the islands, or the recital of the names of the various Dependencies
of the Falkland Islands in a communication to the International
Postal Union, would by themselves be quite insufficient to safeguard
A 140811272 the British claim. The Admiralty expressed the firm opinion that,
of 1942 in naval interests, the British title to the South Orkneys should be
retained. The Colonial Office, while disinclined to commit themselves
to the view that it would be desirable to maintain this title in all
circumstances, expressed the view that in present circumstances
the surrender of the British claim should not be contemplated. The
necessity for some countervailing action was fully ap reciated, and
it was suggested by the Admiralty and Colonial Office that occasional
visits by an officer of the Falkland Islands administration should
be undertaken pending the consideration of stronger action after the
war. At that time the Admiralty was unable to spare a ship to
make a special visit to the islands. In view, therefore, of the
impossibility of enforcing these views on the Argentine Government
owing both to wartime naval commitments and to the necessity for
maintaining trade in essential Argentine commodities, it was decided
A 2620/12/2 to consult His Majesty's Ambassador at Buenos Aires (Sir E. Ovey)
S on the desirability of a representation to the Argentine Government

Admiralty R.O., 231. Meanwhile, at the end of January 1942, the Argentine
ek transport Primero de Mayo (Capitdn de Fragata A. J. Oddera) had
M 04010/42 visited Deception Island in the South Shetlands, and had taken

possession for the Argentine Republic of the whole sector between
A v longs. 25° W, and 68° 34’ W. to the south of lat. 60° S. An act of

et possession was deposited* (see p. 167) and the national colours were
oy painted on the walls of the factory. The ship then sailed southwards
Argentine and erected a flag and a light beacon on Lambda Island, one of the

Marine's Notice  Melchior Islands in the Palmer Archipelago.

to Mavimers,

M B 232. In March 1942 rumours of these activities reached His
vl Majesty's Government through Argentine press reports, thus pro-
A sianan viding further evidence of the " acts of sovereignty "' by which

Argentina was endeavouring to build up a case to extend her claims
in this region.t At the same time, in reply to the enquiry mentioned

SR ;‘}EO"G (paragraph 230), Sir E. Ovey had advised that a protest should

of 1942. made to the Argentine Government. A note was accordingly

e e e ——————

® This was found by H.M.S. Carnarvion

. of Brit nistration at Deception I |
and concludes that the British title to the South Shcllanfcp"?uu‘??n brcls (&?ﬂgg& i:lli.;u;
(AZ416/12/2 ; A 2974/12/2 of 1942 ) eeupation and administration.”
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proofs of Argentina’s claims to certain lands and islands in the
Antarctic, had stated, in a newspaper interview, that the Bergen
Congress must settle the political questions of sovereignty ht‘-l'nrr; any
other busine ss could receive attention. According to Sefior Galmarini
it was impossible to establish any permanent international scientific
c_nllzllmrutmn in the Arctic regions, as proposed by the Norwegian
Government, until these political questions were put out of the way.
This interview had not been repudiated but had, indeed, been made
the basis of a newspaper campaign favouring the despatch of an
Argentine expedition to the Antarctic in the following summer, On
the same day an article appeared in La Prensa outlining the interests
of the various Powers in the Antarctic and pointing out their
u.uiawnurahle_geogmphical position as compared with Argentina’s.
The only territory which had been permanently occupied, the article
stated, was the South Orkneys, and that by Argentina for the last
thirty-five years. The South Shetlands and Graham Island were
geographically merely extensions of the South American continent,
and Argentina had consequently more right there than anybody else.
These claims to polar territory received prominence in the whole
Argentine press.

296, Following the postponement of the Bergen Congress owing
to the war, a permanent ‘‘ National Antarctic Committee " was
formed, by a Decree of April 30th 1940, “ to centralise and be
responsible for the consideration and handling of all questions con-
nected with the defence and development of Argentine interests in
the Antarctic” and to submit “a plan of action covering all the
aspects of the question whether of internal or of international
character.”

297. On July 15th 1940 His Majesty’s Ambassador at Buenos
Aires presented to the Argentine Government a map of Antarctica
published by His Majesty's Government in the Commonwealth of
Australia and forwarded by them for that purpose. The Argentine
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, in acknowledging receipt of this map on
September 11th, “ availed themselves of the opportunity to inform
the British Embassy that the Argentine Government has not
recognised the sovereignty of any other State to any portion of
Antarctic lands or seas, The Argentine Government, which maintains
that to it belongs in Antarctica the dominion over a zone to which
occupation, geographical proximity and the sector formed by prolong-
ation of the American Continent afford it just title, considers that it
would be proper in so far as international circumstances permit to
assemble an international conference of States claiming rights or
interests in the Antarctic, the primary object of which would be to
determine a juridico-political status of that region accepted by all
these States.” The note added that the new map showed a sector
as a Dependency of the Falkland Islands “ which the Argentine
Government, on justified grounds, has always considered an inalien-
able part of its national territory and against de facto occupation
of which it has never ceased to make formal protests to the British
Government.” In view of the fact that this suggestion of an inter-
national conference had not been put forward in the form of an
invitation, it was decided that the note might safely be ignored.

298. On March 27th 1941 the Buenos Aires press published an
official communiqué issued by the Chilean Minister for Foreign Affairs
with regard to conversations between legal advisers of the Argentine
and Chilean Governments which appeared to indicate an agreement
between these two Governments to pursue in common the _umlubit-
able sovereign rights of Chile and Argentina in the Antarctic zone "'
(paragraph 265). This was followed on ?»-Iuy 20th by the publication
of statements made by representative Young of Ohio and approved
by the Chairman of the Foreign Relations Committee, Mr. Fish, to
the effect that the United States Government would do well, as a sign
of friendship towards Argentina, to exert its influence for the return
by Great Britain to Argentina of the Falkland Islands.

(C54829)
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; i . first time that a
action was unnecessary, since it was not ’It‘}F:Z El;vqident's action
reservation of this kind had been made. . nutin‘t' <iid anigred
ought accordingly to be treated as a matter of © - His :\-[;leStV'S
It had, moreover, been the consistent ;Jtﬂllﬂ.\’“; Tt Rijuitioe
Government to avoid an open controversy “"’t'. ild‘therefore
Government over this matter. The gryatc:‘pt care la i h l

n t P . s provocations 1m wiici
always been shown in the face of the various p Bt
the Argentine Government IEI?I? igen 'ﬁ; (t;,fﬁg:;d::;l\gvengladvanpt'age ”
connexion with their claim. e Foreig s e
departing from the above-mentioned policy. As rf-ga?dftt;he ‘:gfgefﬂ:ﬁg
representations to the Argentine Government, the la Ll'j & i
aware of the attitude of His Majesty’s Government, anc !;atfa;'e 3 as
no reason to suppose that they did not regard this attlpudﬁ:fw deiclineg
not only the Falkland Islands themselves, but their Lpel‘; ef o
as well, Representations would not lead to any withdrawal of the
Argentine claim, but were more likely to atford the Argen}u:e
Government an opportunity they would otherwise lack to formulate
in some definite manner a claim which it would be c_mbarrassmg for
His Majesty's Government to receive. In the Foreign Office view,
the longer the Argentine Government confined themselves to protests
and reservations of this character while refraining from the
presentation of any formal and official claim, the stronger would
become the position of His Majesty’s Government. For these reasons
it was doubtful whether any useful purpose would be served by
acting as suggested. On July 2lIst the Colonial Office concurred in
the views thus expressed by the Foreign Office.

224. In July 1939 the Buenos Aires press gave great prominence
to the announcement that Argentina intended to participate in the
Eruposed International Polar Exhibition and Congress of Polar
“xplorers to be held at Bergen from May to September 1940, and at
which His Majesty’s Government were also to be represented.
A Decree of July 15th set up a Committee, under the control of the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, * to make a comprehensive study of the
present state of Antarctic problems and of their eventual relation to
Argentine interests.” It was stressed in numerous press articles that
this opportunity would be taken to assert Argentine claims to
sovereignty in the Antarctic. La Prensa for July 24th 1939 contained
what was probably an officially inspired article . from which the
following statement is quoted : “ If Great Britain considers that by
virtue of a geographical extension of the Falkland Islands she has
juridical rights over the group of islands situated in the frozen
Antarctic Ocean known under the name of South Georgia, South
Orkneys, South Shetland and South Sandwich and the territory known
under the name of Graham Land, it is obvious that Argentina, which
has never recognised Great Britain's sovereignty over the Falkland
Islands, reserves all its rights in that region by virtue of the same
theory as is propounded by the British Government.” On the
following day the Buenos Aires Herald was more explicit, stating that
Argentina claimed absolute sovereignty to the Antarctic sector
between longs. 20° W, and 68° W., and would strongly contest all
British claims within this area and also any attempt of the United
States to extend the Monroe Doctrine into the Anta:;ctic_

225. On August 8th 1939 the Buenos Aires Herald announced
that the forthcoming Antarctic summer would be one of the busiest
on record, and that the Byrd Expedition, which the United States
Government were sending south ( paragraph 338), was consiciereda"eh
political challenge to all nations claiming territory in the Antar t'a
region.” Public opinion in Argentina was vigorously demandin t‘I;1 it
t!zg Goyernment should take steps to assert Argentine te gt al
claims in the Antarctic. That Government sent a naval tuTl frkch
cach year to the meteorological station in the South Orkne g
htztle expenditure would be required to send this transport ﬁf& 't Vfiry
Weddell Sea. Both the Argentine and the United States Gove pits
were hoping to establish their Antarctic claims without ;ggﬁ:&ts

Hes.  Sefior Galmarinj g

member of the newly appointed com mission charged with drawinglup
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International Postal Union to ti juari

te al al Uni ) the fact that the jurisdiction of the 713/12
Faanr;_d Isl.a‘mds Ad_mmlslrahun extended also tu]thc Dcpvmic}-ncir-i o
of the islands, to which South Georgia belonged {pa:agrapﬁ 2{)é) ;

219. Argentine claims to South Georgia were agai :
in press articles of 1930 and 1931. In IQ%S the ,-‘\r;g:-;::tnini;ll;,r.{::r:ré;?: b
issued a propaganda postcard which bore a map of South America ooy T2
showing Argentine territory with the Falkland Islands coloured in ” I-".H
such a way as to lmp]y Argentine sovereignty ; what was obviously i}f:]f;-‘gm'z
meant to represent South Georgia was also marked on the map, but |
the scale was too small to allow of colouring. About the same time
the Argentine post office issued a one peso stamp with the Falkland 4 72088972
Islands coloured as Argentine, but South Georgia was not depicted. of 198 k

No action was taken by His Majesty’s Government in regard to
either of these productions,

220. South Georgia is seldom mentioned in the Foreign Office
archives, and the question of its sovereignty arises only in connection
with the larger question of the Falkland Islands themselves and that
of the Dependencies generally. Since 1927 the Argentine Government A 3390/12/2
have asserted their claims to the Dependencies on numerous °f 194 '
occasions. They undoubtedly assert a claim to South Georgia, but
they have not done so in any formal communication to His Majesty’s
Government. The closest approach to such a communication was
their refusal to disavow the action of the Argentine Postal Adminis-
tration in 1927, but even in this case no formal notes passed between
the two governments, the only written communications passing
between His Majesty’s Embassy and the Argentine Ministry of
Foreign Affairs being in the form of memoranda. Explicit claims to
South Georgia have, however, been put forward during recent years
by the Argentine press (paragraph 224).

Falkland Islands Dependencies, 1938-1944

221. Developments in Argentina, 1938-42. On September 29nd W 13032/842/50
1938 the Argentine President, when promulgating the ratification of '
the various postal conventions signed at Cairo on March 20th 1934,
added an express categorical reserve reasserting the Argentine claim
to the Falkland Tslands and their Dependencies, which were described
as belonging to the Argentine nation by inalienable right. At the
same time the President sent a message to Congress explaining that
this reservation had been made, not as a modification of the law, but
as a partial rectification of the convention which prejudiced, as a
matter of principle, rights of sovereignty which had always been
invoked and would ever be maintained. This rectification, it was
pointed out in the Argentine press, related to the action of the
British Delegation to the Cairo Postal Conference, who had included
the Falkland Islands and their Dependencies as British possessions
at the time of signature.

222. On June 13th 1939, the Colonial Office stated that the A 4204358272
Governor of the Falkland Islands had raised the point that the °f19%
President’s message to Congress of September 22nd 1988 (see
paragraph 221) had disclaimed the implied acceptance of the
declaration of the British delegation to the Cairo Postal Conference
in so far as it included the “ Islas Malvinas and Dependencies,”
which belonged to the Argentine nation by inalienable right. The
Governor went on to say that this was, so far as he was aware, the
first occasion on which the Argentine Government had made any
claim to sovereignty over the Dependencies of the Falkland Islands
other than the South Orkneys, and submitted that, as the wording
of the Decree accompanying the message to the Argentine Congress
constituted a direct assertion of the sovereignty over these
Dependencies, appropriate action should be taken to cause this claim
' to further British territory to be withdrawn.

293. The Colonial Office were informed in reply, on July 8th 1939, A 420435822
that the possibility of some counter-declaration to the above- of 1935,
mentioned statement had been contemplated by the Foreign Office
at the time, but that the conclusion had been reached that such

(C54829)
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he conference had not hing t"'Hd_g \‘;1?1;32
et wl however, that 15 Maje -y i

[t was added, sntine reservation

ir turn declare that the '?_-T[Tﬂ""l'l [slands and

character and purpose of t
questions of jurisdiction
Government must in the 1 :
could in no way affect the British right to the
their Dependencies.

215. After 1937, the history of Argentmne claims [l-l Il;vl h-“tllla{(f:'
Orkneys is so closely connected with their claims - .' 5 I‘:‘,\-'pl‘.[
Dependencies of the Falkland Islands that it 1S IE"CEJ‘H&T} ::umt e
at this point to the earlier history of these claims. The accoun o
events relating to the South Orkneys after 1937 continues

paragraph 221.

South Shetland Islands and Graham Land, 1892-1937

216. Argentine interests in the South Shetlands an :
Land date from 1892, when an application was made to the Argentine
Government for fishery rights in those waters [prl:";lp:r.'-!.ph 125}._ I!l 15
evident that the Argentine Government were considering annexation
of the South Shetlands in 1901, but no action was taken (para-
graph 127). In 1906, an Argentine Decree described Booth-Wandel
Island, to the south of Bismarck Strait in west Grabam Land, as
“ Southern Argentine Lands "' (paragraph 192). Apart from thgse
early indications of interest, it is only since 1937 that the Argentine
Government have shown an evident intention to extend their
Antarctic claims to the whole of Graham Land as well as to the
South Shetlands. The account of events relating to this area after
1937 continues in paragraph 221,

d Graham

South Georgia, 1906-1937

217. A lease of land in South Georgia was granted on March 8th
1906, to the Cia. Argentina de Pesca of Buenos Aires (paragraph 142).
The Colonial Office took the view that, having regard to the fact that
the Argentine Company had taken out a British lease with the certain
knowledge of the Argentine Government, that Captain Nuiies,
technical adviser to the company and a high official (Director of
Armaments in the Ministry of Marine) of that Government, was one
of those who waited upon the British Chargé d'Affaires at Buenos
Aires to prefer, on behalf of the company, a request for a British
lease, that neither the company* nor the Argentine Government
vessel Guardia Nacional* hoisted the Argentine flag on the island,
and that no protest had been received from the Argentine Government
to the grant of the lease to the South Georgia Exploration Company
(paragraph 138) or to their constant flying of the British flag on the
island or to their request to the Argentine Company to desist from
further operations, His Majesty’s Government might definitely
assume that the Argentine Government did not question the British
title to South Georgia. Since that date the Cia. Argentina de Pesca
has continued to pay licence fees and dues on whale and seal oil to
the Falkland Islands Government, and they have fully r.‘nnfnrméfl to
all the regulations of that Government. s

218. What appears to have been the first claim of an official
nature advanced by the Argentine Government to sovereignty m} a1
South Georgia was made in 1927, when the ;\rmqﬂiﬁp ‘P(;;;I
Administration notified the International Postal Union that Argenti a)
territorial jurisdiction extended de jure and de facto over :il Liﬂ m;;
Orkney Islands and South Georgia (paragraph 205) ]j\- ;h: % ou(tj..
de facto it can only be assumed that the Arp{r.-ntin-' Gove e
referred to the concession granted to the Cia. fi!‘m‘ntin't d’n;)::]em
which still maintained its whaling and sealing 5L:;tj(,-n -Ltl(' (. .3'?63'
It 1s notable, }‘!O“'f‘.\.'cl', that when His 'M:liunt\"q‘ a II?rt?-[ken‘
remonstrated against this communication, the :\rgp‘nfjn“‘ (.“. h':.u,mdm-
replied by justifying their claim to the Falkland Isla i‘rﬂ\trmnent
South Orkneys, but omitted all reference to Sout} n;‘h, anql to the
Majesty's Government, for their part, called ihv l:“,-.];{;;ﬁ:a;)f gh

ety ! € 16

* Certainly one of the four ships of the Cig; Argentina de

Pesca flow the Argentine flag.

1
|
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211. In 1930 the Colonial Office arranged an inter-departmental
discussion on the suggestion made by the Foreipn Office on the
desirability n} ceding the South Orkneys in return for the abandon-
ment of claims by the Argentine Government to the Falkland
[slands. In view of the repercussion which arbitration of the
former mighl have on the latter, it was decided that any question of
arbitration must be ruled out, and that there were serious objections
to cession (see Appendix VII, pp. 176-177). |

212, On October 25th 1933, His Majesty’s Ambassador at Buenos
Aires (Sir H. G. Chilton) wrote semi-officially to Sir R. Vansittart,
suggesting that the moment was propitious for a settlement, following
the ratification of the new Anglo-Argentine Convention, and the
conviction that would seem to exist on both sides that close economic
co-operation, not to mention closer cultural relations, would be to
the mutual advantage of both countries. He also (1) revived for
consideration the idea of exchanging the South Orkneys for an
Embagsy House site in Buenos Aires : and (2) raised the question
whether the British expedition, which had just sailed from England
in the Discovery 11 for a voyage of 20 months, should touch at the
South Orkneys during her voyage. The advisability of taking any,
and if so what, political action upon Sir H. Chilton’s letter was very
fully explored, but it was eventually decided to let “ sleeping dogs
lie." Sir Henry's suggestion that the Discovery Il should pay the
islands a visit, however, was considered to be a good one, and a visit
was subsequently arranged in April 1934.

213. In a despatch of April 13th 1936 His Majesty’s Ambassador
at Buenos Aires (Sir Nevile Henderson) recommended, in view of the
growing irredentism in Argentina, the cession to her of the single
island of the South Orkney group on which the meteorological
station is situated, and the recognition by His Majesty’s Government
of her legal rights to the Falklands in return for Great Britain's
actual undisturbed occupation thereof. He further proposed a
formal reassertion of the British title to the South Orkneys. This
suggestion was discussed with the Colonial Office, who concurred in
the terms of the reply, in which it was pointed out that the legal basis
of British sovereignty over the Falkland Islands was far less weak
than was at one time supposed. Either the island was terra nullius
at the time of British occupation in 1832, or, if at that time Argentina
had possessed sovereignty, Great Britain had by her occupation for
over 100 years acquired a title by prescription (see Appendix VI,
pp. 174-176). TFor these reasons it was considered that the admission
of Argentina's legal right, and still more the proposed cession of an
island in the South Orkneys, was too high a price to pay for the sake
of bringing the controversy to an end. Arbitration as a solution of
the problem was also rejected, since His Majesty’s Government could
not afford to run the nisk of losing their whole strategic position in
the South Atlantic, and it was finally decided that there was no
practical alternative to leaving matters as they stood. Sir N.
Henderson’s view that British rights to the South Orkneys should be
affirmed was endorsed, and he was informed that it was being
arranged for the Discovery I1 to call at some port in this group for
that purpose.

214. On June st 1937, the Argentine Ambassador called at the
Foreign Office and drew attention to a statement made by the
British Minister of Agriculture at the inaugural session of the Whaling
Conference in London, that the Government of the Falkland Islands
had been given jurisdiction over a number of adjacent islands. The
Ambassador had entered a reservation that no document to which
the Argentine Government might _sui'>srr:llt_- as a _rcrsult of the
conference would in any way prejudice the rights claimed by them
over the Falkland and other islands. This had caused Mr. Morrison
to produce a draft counter-statement, the terms of which _l:ftl l|I‘L‘.
Ambassador to declare that if it were made he had not the smallest

doubt that his Government would instruct him to withdraw from the

conference. A counter-statement
in which His Majesty’s Government expresse

was finally agreed upon, however,
d the view that the
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P Union Affairs. It was
Pnstms (3 oo nted on 05!‘3] I 4 il o
Postatmtes e 7 e d I‘f‘.lll."li!l(‘,d under B!‘Itlsh juns~

added that these territories were an i acnt
diction, and that the title of the _[_’ost;naster-(fe:?eral to repre
them could not be regarded as qualified in any way.

207. At the same time the general position, m(‘lndmg‘the prc:lpgsttag
exchange of the islands for a Legation site, was agaifl dl&_‘»CllllS‘Se Sl
the Admiralty and the Colonial Office. The latter (1efmIrFt. yl retever
to consider liarting with the islands upon any grounds wha dt
The revenue value of the islands had increased tremendously, and 1
was feared, moreover, that for any other power to take them over
wonld result in the development of a _iorelgn whaling mdust{y ;n
direct antagonism to British interests in those waters. Ahnc: eH_o
the Argentine Government was drafted, pointing out t af h:s
Majesty's Government could not now cqns_;u!ur the cession ol tte
islands, reiterating the grounds of the Br‘ltlﬁllﬂt‘.lalll‘l to sovereign 1y
over them, and calling upon the Argentine Government to apply
formally for a British licence to operate a wireless station there.

208. His Majesty’s Minister was instructed to present the note,
but replied on November 9th 1928, demurring to taking any action
which would prejudice the existing excellent relations between the
two countries. He suggested that, in view of the attempts being
made by the United States Government to improve their relations
with Argentina, the time was not propitious for raising any conten-
tious points with the latter, which might have the effect of diminishing
the regard in which His Majesty’s Government was held. This view
was supported by the Foreign Office, and at an inter-departmental
conference on January 31st 1929, it was proposed that the matter
should not be pursued by replying officially to the Argentine Govern-
ment’s notes, but that Sir M. Robertson should enter orally a
“ caveat " in regard to the Argentine claims. Further efforts to
induce the Argentine Government to apply for a wireless licence
would in this case have to be abandoned. It was pointed out,
however, that a continuance of the controversy could lead, in the end,
only to arbitration, which on general grounds was undesirable and
which, whatever the result, would raise afresh the question of the
Argentine claims in the Falkland Islands and elsewhere. The
suggestion originally put forward in 1910 for the absolute cession of
the South Orkneys in return for an unreserved waiver by the Argen-
tine Government of any claim to the Falkland Islands was not
pressed because it was not clear how such a proposal would be
received in Argentina, though it was felt that the suggestion deserved
careful examination should evidence become available that an
agreement on these lines would be acceptable to the Argentine
Government.

209. As a result of a semi-official enquiry, Sir M. Robertson made
it clear that he was averse from raising the question with the
Argentine Government in any form, officially or otherwise. The
Secretary of State was advised that, having regard to the consistent
British attitude in the past, the position of His Majesty's Government
was not likely to be prejudiced by failure to reply to the Argentine
Government’s notes of 1927 and 1928 (paragraphs 204 and 205), and
after further consultation with the departments concerned. Sir M.
Robertson was instructed in a despatch of August 26th 1929. to avoid
for the time being any discussion of the question with the ;Krgentine
Government.,

210, In February 1929, information was receiv i i '
Minister at Buenos Aires that H.M.S. Des a.'.ch,e\ﬂi?lf glles gg{f?r?o:
of the Falkland Islands on board, contempﬁated a visit to the South
Orkneys. Sir M. Robertson’s deprecation of such a proceedin
likely to precipitate the question of the sovereignty of the isl:;u-uflvj
when the Foreign Office were trying to avoid raising it was su tes
by the Colonial Office, and definite instructions were ée;itpgo r h
Governor that he should on no account visit these islands i
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202. His Majesty’s Minister, acting on instructions, informed the
Argentine Minister for Foreign Affairs on April 14th IS-):.iH t\hal whil
tpe precise meaning of his reply was not quite clear ”;‘i Majest i
Government did not interpret it as an assertion of .~g¢'n-g-rrh:i;.:|1‘l!\"‘u:vhr
islands which were undoubtedly British on the grounds of discovery
and formal taking of possession and to which no Argentine (-}r‘-n.-rﬁi-
ment appeared ever to have put forward a claim in any communication
to His Majesty’s Government. No answer was returned to this note.

21}.}: On _.\pnl 6th 1927, His Majesty's Chargé d’Affaires at
Buenos :\l.rt*s reported that the station had begun to work, and gave
pan’l('ulalrs of t!}c !nstallation. adding that it had the call signal
LRZ. No application for a licence or a proper call signal had been
made through the Governor of the Falkland Islands, The Admiralty
and Colonial Office held that the matter could not be allowed to rest
where it was, and pressed for further action at Buenos Aires. Enquiry
was at once made of the International Telegraph Bureau at Berne
whether any notification respecting a call signal for the station had
been made by the Argentine Government, and, if so, in what terms,
The reply of the Bureau showed that the Argentine Government
had apphed for a call signal two years before, and that their notifica-
tion to the Bureau was of such a nature as to imply an assumption
of Argentine sovereignty over the islands, the wireless station having
been transferred from the Ministry of Agriculture and incorporated
in the Argentine system of coastal stations under the control of the
Ministry of Marine. His Majesty’s Minister accordingly addressed
a note, dated September 8th 1927, to the Argentine Government,
calling attention to his communication of April 14th 1926 (paragraph
202), and stating that, as His Majesty’s Government had heard
nothing further on the subject from the Argentine Government,
they had assumed that their view was shared by the latter. The
notification to the Berne Bureau appeared, however, to imply an
assumption which His Majesty’s Government could not admit,
although the meteorological <tation was, with their assent, handed
over to the Argentine Government in 1904, by a British subject.
His Majesty’s Minister had, therefore, to point out, in the most
friendly manner, that the existence of the wireless station was quite
irregular, and to express the hope that the matter might be placed
upon a proper footing at an early date by application for a British
licence, which application would readily be granted.

204. To this the Argentine Government replied, on January 20th
1928, that they could not admit the British position, and that they
themselves laid claim to the South Orkneys, apart from other
inalienable rights, omn the ground of first effective occupation
constantly maintained. This note was accompanied by an unofficial
nmmuran?.lum from the Argentine Government sugg(-ls;hng that t}w
negotiations of 1914 for the exchange of the islands against a Legation
site in Buenos Aires should be reopened.

205. It had meanwhile been brought to the notice of His Majesty’s
Government that, in response to a circular letter from the Inter-
national Postal Bureau at Berne, the Argentine Government had
formally declared that Argentine territorial jurisdiction extended
de jure and de facto over the South Orkney Islands and South Georgia,
and de jure over the Falkland Islands ; dé facto jurisdiction over the
latter being prevented by British occupation. This statement was,
with the other rq;ﬂies. published by the Bureau and clrcl_zlated to
members of the Postal Union. An aide-meémoire contesting these
statements, left by Sir M. Robertson on December 17th 1927, brought
from the Argentine Government the reply that, as regards the South
Orkneys, they formally reafirmed the claim they had already put
forward. 3

;. It was decided that the position of His Majesty's Govern-
menztogh(}:lld be clearly stated to the Postal Union authorities, and
through the General Post Office the Berne Bureau were notified th}::t‘
the South Orkney [slands and South Georgia were included 1n tla
Falkland Island “Dependencies, the Administration of which the
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i re involved.
¢ of the bargain would have mvo
again until 1928* (paragraph 204).

198. In the meantime the Ar;_:i;-ntinet(s(::;;:;;lir;i;m;tgatlgrt:o:ti;1;111;(:3
to send out annual reliefs for the meteorologita: - :
at‘tis(fn or protest on the part of His Majesty's Government h&hﬁﬁlg:;
in October 1913, after a report had appeared (for th]f? ]s;eco ety
that the Argentine Government intended to'esia_h gst atook i
telegraph station on the group, His Majestys -.lm:;{e{ . e
opportunity of intimating to the director of the ECOI‘O gr 2
Department that it would be necessary to consult the Govern ;
the Falkland Islands before such a scheme was carried out—a
statement in which the director expressed his concurrence.

199. In July 1920 the head of the Argentine .Meteorologxca.l
Department Jinf}(;rmecl His Majesty’s Minister that in the budget
just presented to Congress no item had been {nserted for the upkeep
of the meteorological station, that the station would have to be
closed when the next relief ship went there, and that the Argentine
flag would no longer fly over the islands. A strong press agitation,
which took the line that the closing of the station would involve the
loss of sovereignty over the South Orkneys, proved too strong for
the Argentine Government, and the sloop Uruguay left Buenos Aires
in February 1921 to relieve the personnel of the station.

200. The attitude of His Majesty's Government at the time
of this incident was that no special steps should be taken to reassert
British sovereignty until such time as the Argentine Government
should protest. Suggestions that the position might be safeguarded
by requiring the Argentine Government to pay a quitrent for the
station, or by assuring them of the support of the Falklands Govern-
ment in the decision to retain the meteorological station in the
interests of science, were both rejected on the recommendation of
His Majesty’s Minister at Buenos Aires.

the expense which their par
This question was not raised

201, In 1925 the Argentine Government erected a wireless station
at the observatory. As a result His Majesty’s Minister was, on June
23rd 1925, instructed to inform them that the necessary licence
would be granted, but that they should have applied for it before-
hand, that they must apply for a call signal through the Governor
of the Falkland Islands, whereupon a call signal from the list of
groups reserved for stations in the British Empire would be allotted :
and that, when the station was installed, the particulars to be
furnished to the International Bureau at Berne under the Inter-
national Telegraphic Conventions of 1906 and ‘1912 should be
communicated through His Majesty’s Government. In reply, the
Argentine Government stated that, with regard to wireless stations
constructed in Argentine territory, the republic would act in accord-

ance with the provisions of the International Radiotelegraphic
Conventions, of which they were signatories.

* When the Argentine Government, in a memorandum of December 15th 1827, attempted to
reopen these negotiations, they implied, without stating in so many words, that the original
negotiations had broken down because Dr. Bosch, the then Foreign Minister, had found it difficalt
to accept the word " cession ” in regard to the Sonth Orknovs, and His Majesty's Ambassador
[Sir M. Robertson) in transmitting the memorandum appears to have a-:('cptui this as a troe
statement of the position without any relerence to the early correspondence

Unless Sir R. Tower withheld such a vital piece of information. which is hardly imagi
-)I-jef:m-ln of this sort was raised at all. A draft convention was submitted by g-;i‘r RF%?:::;'!;;:
which the word ' cession ** was used. The Argentine Government replied with a counter-draft in
which they made use, without any comment, of the expression ' 5 M. Britanica dd por incory radas
al dominio argenting las Islas Orcadas.”  An amended draft was handed {0 Dr. Bosch byinzs:r R
Tower on January 10th 1914, and almost immediately afterwards there was a change of
government. In March 1914, in the absence of any roply to his note of January ll)fhg Hi
Majesty’s Minister asked the new Foreign Secretary whether he might expect an ex réasim; c;[ t1 :
views of the Argentine Government in this matter, He was informed in reply :.hapt “Dr Plaz‘:;
(Acting President) had given his opinion that the present was an inavspicious moment to put
forward any suggestion entailing expenditure by the Argentine Government \au{: that he ?ul
that the contempiated parchase of a site for a British Legation house in Bucnos.;\i! - 1d e.t
onerous at a4 moment when every endeavour was being ms 1 sl LA
the Departments of State.” The Forcign Secretary ac
that perhaps, in the circomstances, it would be profe

The final paragraph of Sir R. Tower's despate i
support the suggeation made by the Argentine Gavernment in 1928,  He ? _rm;mn t,im"‘f not
Pefia and Dr. Bosch were, 1 believe, genuinely desirous of giving oI{[cc?::: mBut_h !Tr'mrlunt
courtesies with His Majesty’s Government. Th i ae. of

$ at generati r P
Administration shows no favour to anything which '\z:ill :nt:ml:l1 e:l;;:nrr?'cd SARY w0E the present

rable to drop the question altogether.
W reparting the above conve
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Majesty's Gove nt 1 : i
: L‘l‘“‘-n:‘ BI("Ut“”l”-m nt in the previous July. As the reference was
pr o A )'_n_l e Letters Patent, a copy of the Falkland Islands
.ga{;;tr containing that instrument was sent to His Majesty’s Chargé
Affaires for communication to the Argentine Government, who

acknowledged the receipt of this com icati ‘
: | § communication on Marc '
without comment. vk dleant L

195, Shortly afterwards His Majesty’s Chargé d’Affaires (Mr.
C. Russell) reported that an Argentine vessel had visited the South
Orkneys in connexion with the observatory there, and that in
various official decrees that had appeared in reference to the
expedition, the islands had not been described, as on previous
occasions, in terms implying Argentine sovereignty. Mr. Russell
attributed this to a politic abstention from raising the question of
their claim rather than to any abandonment of it. The Argentine
Government had specially acquired a ship for the purpose of keeping
up communication with the observatory ; and Mr. Russell found it
difficult to attribute this action, with the expense entailed, to any
interest in meteorological science, but ascribed it rather to a wish to
establish a link with the islands with a view to the ultimate assertion
of their claims. Mr. Russell suggested the visit of one of His
Majesty’s ships to the group, for the purpose of performing acts of
ownership, while avoiding any formal action likely to call in question
the validity of former British claims. The Admiralty, however, in
view of the dangers, were not prepared to risk a modern ship in those
waters, and had no other available.

196. Following a violent press campaign in Argentina during
1909-10, a proposal was made by Mr. Townley, then British Minister
at Buenos Aires, that the South Orkneys group should be ceded to
the Argentine Government. The suggestion had been made to him
by British subjects residing in Argentina, who pointed out that the
islands were useless to Great Britain, though valuable to Argentina
on account of the observatory. The cession was proposed as a free
gift, and appears to have been contemplated as a complimentary
gesture on the occasion of the Argentine centenary celebrations. The
Admiralty had no objection. The Board of Trade could not suggest
a quid pro quo. The Colonial Office vetoed the proposal on the ground
that the South Orkneys were valuable as a base for the whaling
industry, in which many of the Falkland Islanders were interested,
and which provided a small but useful revenue for the Administration.
Inter-departmental correspondence continued in 1911, and the
proposal appears then to have first been put forward that the price of
the cession of the South Orkneys should be recognition by Argentina
of British claims to the Falkland Islands. The Colonial Office
considered that an offer to cede the South Orkney group would be
interpreted by the Argentine Government as an indication that His
Majesty’s Government had doubts as to the strength of their position
in the Falkland Islands, and the proposal was consequently rejected.
The Colonial Office were, nevertheless, prepared to consider any
Argentine proposal on its merits.

197. Sir R, Tower, having by then succeeded as British Minister
at Buenos Aires, suggested in October 1911 that the South Orkneys
should be ceded in exchange for a site for a Legation. The Colonial
Office eventually agreed to this proposal and, after making informal
enquiries of the Argentine Government as to whether the cession of
the islands on these terms would be agreeable to them, Sir R. Tower
was instructed to arrange with them an exchange of courtesies ™
in the form of a convention, under which the South Orkneys would be
ceded to Argentina in return for a suitable site for a British Legation
house. In the draft convention provision was made for safeguarding
the rights of British subjects interested in the whaling industry. The
text of the convention had been agreed upon by His Majesty’s
Government and the Argentine Government when, in I'9]4, a new
Argentine Government came into office, who were unwilling to go to
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190. His Majesty’s Chargé d’Affaires at Buenos f“{;fil{::;‘n:;}ﬁ
been instructed to make representations in tilus 5{‘)!gt to eem‘ed e b
Government, pointed out that the Colonial (‘ Cem‘" zally invited
unaware that the Argentine Government har i)w\.rl rt)l fi:)h's,en'ator\;
through His Majesty’s Legation, to take "’5’;}2 . :;f b resu Ry
(paragraph 188). In reminding the Colonial .(', i
suggested that the fact th:iat t_hv‘.;\rtgmrm{t' }‘(;:JV‘_\?:[]?::‘Y% ~rdeayes
WET ¢ observatory at the invitation o s Majesty's ! ste :
:::z;ll{q--tl};1e British claim to the islands all t'!lw stronger, ““,dhthat the
fact that the Argentine flag had been h_mstf:d there, wit oué zu:));
objection on the part of His Majesty's Government, nefi t‘n
weaken it, as it was doubtless flown for the protection of the station.
No claim to the islands had apparently been -asscrtcd, }'.'hlle thehnote
from the Argentine Minister for Foreign Affairs accepting the charge
of the station made no such claim, indeed since none was made, none
might appear to be contemplated.

191. In these circumstances it was decided, with Colonial Office
concurrence, not to make the proposed communication to _the
Argentine Government. A notice having, howewr: appeared in a
Buenos Aires newspaper to the effect that the Argentine Government
were about to inform foreign Powers that a permanent observatory
had been established in the South Orkneys, His Majesty’s Minister,
acting on instructions, addressed a note to the Argentine Guvem.ment
on August 23rd 1906, intimating that the group was British territory,
and that the intervention of His Majesty’s Government was based not
less on British ownership than on t%lt‘ British status of the expedition
which had originally established it,

192, A Decree, dated December 15th 1906, having been issued by
the Argentine Government making appropriation for the salaries of
the staffs of the meteorological stations at the South Orkneys and
Booth (Wandel) Island, and alluding to these islands as  stations in
Southern Argentine lands,” His Majesty's Minister was, after
consultation with the Colonial Office, instructed to renew to the
Argentine Government the declaration of August 23rd 1908, to the
effect that the South Orkneys were British. Ina note of January 4th
1907, Mr. Townley pointed out to the Argentine Government that the
description of islands in the Decree was misleading and renewed the
declaration as instructed. The Minister for Foreign Affairs, in
replying to Mr. Townley's note, asked for time to consider the
question, but in conversation he expressed his surprise that His
Majesty’s Government claimed this group. No further communi-
cation from the Argentine Government at this period is recorded.

193. Mr. Townley, who had replied to the Minister for Foreign
Affairs that there could be no question of the soundness of the
British claim, asked, in reporting home the matter, that he might be
furnished with further evidence in support of the claim. The
Admiralty, of whom enquiry was made, pointed out that no Spaniard
had ever explored or discovered anything in that region : that the
land in question was far outside any territorial limits to which the
Argentine Government could lay claim ; and, further, that the South
Orkneys had been formally taken possession of by British subjects
long before the Argentine Government had ships to visit the locality,
Moreover, even under the ruling of Pope Alexander VI, in 1494,
though its validity as an argument in support of a claim to territory
could not be admitted by His Majesty’s Government, the meridian
of partition between the Spanish and Portuguese possessions would

place the South Orkneys under Portuguese and not Spanish
authority *

194. Following the issue of Letters Patent on Tul 21st 1
appointing the Governor of the Falkland Islands toncyGovemo?ng
the South Orkneys, and providing for the government of the latter
as a Dependency of the former group (paragraph 131) the Argentine
Minister for Foreign Affairs expressed a wish, on November 13th
1908, to be informed of the terms of the * declaration " made by His

* This last conclusion can hardly be upheld : see paragraph 289,




—‘

1;3(2 ll }1“. l:;:mt{;{n in t?;ta Falkland Islands Dependencies is now  Falkian
refg}l]a .u l'“~ e halrf Fishery (Consolidation) Ordinance of 1936 s
which applies only to ships working in territorial waters, In ractice, N9 of 1908
oo IBnt;sl. control of foreign pelagic whﬁli:lﬂ pi;r rhé iy
Dependencies can only be applied to these few ‘companies which still

hold shore leases at South Georgia. panies  sti

ARGENTINE CLAIMS

187. Argentine claims in the Falkland Islands De

fe SIES . slands Dependencies are
to a ‘,onlmdm able extent bound up with her claims t[?htlur Falkland
Islan'ds themselves (see Appendix VI, pp. 174-176 and Appendix VII
pp. 176-177). Argentine interests date from 1892 (paragraph 125}t

and, until 1937, may best be considered i ;ac
T ed under the heading of each

South Orkney Islands, 1904-1937.

\Iatliﬁ?x‘alh:\nﬁl'?rd} 1903 Dr. W. S. Bruce, leader of the Scottish Conidentisl

! | arctic Expedition, established a meteorological station 7% 1039
on Laure Island. He hoped to make this a permanent observatory,

but failed to gain the necessary financial support in Great Britain, Mr. Haggard,
Early in 1904 His Majesty’s Minister at Buenos Aires (Mr. Haggard) 50 oot
communicated to the Argentine Government an offer from Dr. Bruce sy

to convey to the South Orkneys four Argentine scientists into whose

care he would place the observatory. This offer was accepted and a Ar Haggard,
Decree issued by the Argentine Government authorizing their fl{;t?i.,{;;"““““
Meteorological Department to take over and to maintain the ob- S
servatory in question (paragraph 68). The transfer took place on

February 22nd 1904, one British observer, Mr. Mossman, remaining

in charge of the work for the first year of Argentine control. On R. N. Rudmoss
their arrival, the Argentine observers hoisted the Argentine flag in O ket ot
Scotia Bay, but there was no indication that this implied Argentine the Poles.
ownership. There was no ceremony of taking possession. One of o T N
the new staff came provided with a supply of Argentine postage A 6363/5382/2
stamps and a_specially designed post mark, “ Orcadas del Sud. fose
Distrito Rio Gallegos,” but this is believed to have been in the

interests of philatelists. The first mail to Buenos Aires was taken

north in the Scotia and posted from Cape Town, a fact which has

since been advanced as proof that an Argentine post office was

recognised by the British authorities® Nothing in the correspond-

ence which passed between His Majesty’s Minister at Buenos Aires

and the Argentine Government at this time can be construed as 2

recognition, either express or implied, of Argentine sovereignty over

the islands. After consultation with the Admiralty and the Colonial

Office, neither of whom attached any importance to the islands, as ToMr. Haggard
to the action of the Argentine Government, His Majesty’s Minister :‘_:,;’;,,*‘-,Q.‘jf"
at Buenos Aires was told that he need not take any steps in the

matter.

189, In November 1905, the Legation at Buenos Aires reported ¥° ‘_[J-"‘ﬂrd
that the Argentine Government had acquired, for the purpose of. Novsinber
keeping up communication with the observatory, a vessel L-mployod 30th 1903
by Dr. Charcot, the French explorer, in his Antartic expedition.

In view of the facts as to discovery and the declaration of possession

detailed in paragraph 144, the Colonial Office suggested that it should

be intimated to the Argentine Government that the South Orkneys

were British territory ; that His Majesty’s Government assumed that

it was in ignorance of this fact that the Argentine meteorological

station had been maintained there since February 1904 without any
notification having been made to His Majesty’s Government, but

that it was hoped that the Argentine Government would not dis-
continue the use of the islands for this useful scientific purpose

because the territorial status of the group was not what they
apparently thought it to be when they took over the station from

Dr. Bruce, l _

*In a paper read !u-i-.un- the Philatelic Society of _lcn_h'.lnnr-.‘hnrg [n.d.], Dr. J. H. Pirie, one of
the members of the Seottish expedition, states that Sefior Acufia arrived **fully accredited by
the Argentine postal authorities as a -rlru_-,'m\:mu-r." However, only two outslde deliveriea could
hmul- been effected by this post office, since neither the second nor any of the subscquent pasties
until 1941 (see paragraph 229) included an aceredited postmaster,
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an effective control over the industry, for all Whagg%“’“;:}:‘g‘&%ﬂ
from territorial waters. When, in 1922, Petter : T, l‘:afes L
slip-way for factory ships, a vent through which w Bee Exeilitis
hauled on deck to be flensed, the need for harbours and shore o
passed. From 1925 onwards pelagic whaling bec;n;e g e
expeditions made up of catchers and factory ships co r?m ha.le:'.
sea for long periods, following the main concentrations o t?:' :
catching fresher whales, and thereby obtaining larger quantities o
oil. Under this new regime, intensive pelagic whaling was_camler!
on unrestricted by the regulations imposed on the shore stations by
the Colonial Government. There was a marked increase in the
number of whales killed annually, and fears of the depletion of the
stock were widely entertained. In 1929 the Norwegian Gf)vernmerEt
passed a Whaling Act to regulate the activities of Norweglan pelagic
whalers, and in the succeeding years restrictive international agree-
ments were made (Appendix XIV, pp. 188-190), but these have
not proved sufficiently effective to conserve the stock of whales.

183. For this reason, since October 1928 the Falkland Islan_ds
Government has exercised a stricter control over those companies
which wished to make use of territorial waters in the Dependencies.
Whaling licences and leases have been granted only on the condition
that companies holding a lease or licence for one Dependency shall
not fish within specified distances of the other Dependencies. The
Government has further required that the companies concerned
should conduct their whaling operations throughout the whole of
the area defined by the Letters Patent of March 28th 1917 (para-
graph 133), whether inside or outside territorial waters, as if the law
regulations and conditions of leases and licences applicable inside
territorial waters applied throughout the whole area. Foreign
companies wishing to operate from shore stations or inside the
territorial waters of the Dependencies have thus been subject to
British control when conducting pelagic operations on the whaling
grounds outside territorial waters. There has never been any question
of using force against foreign vessels which do not conform with the
regulations when outside territorial waters, but a licence to operate
inside territorial waters could be withheld from any company not
observing its contract.

184. It was only in this way that the control necessary to conserve
the stock of whales could be maintained over some of the pelagic
whalers operating outside territorial waters. Conditions could
naturally be imposed on British ships, wherever they were. The
conditions regulating whaling inside territorial waters had been
embodied in the Norwegian law of 1929 and their observance might
therefore be expected from Norwegian ships. The only other foreign
vesstl which had been conducting pelagic operations in the Falkland
Islands Dependencies belonged to the Cia. Argentina de Pesca, which
also possessed a shore sealing station at South Georgia, and for this
reason could be made amenable to local regulations. The lease for
the Cia. Argentina de Pesca’s shore station at South Georgia has
thus been granted subject to an agreement debarring the company
from pelagic whaling in the territorial waters of the remainder of the
Dependencies.

185. The regulations enforced under the Falkland Islands Govern-
ment’s licences contained substantially the same provisions as those
in the Geneva Whaling Convention of 1931 (Appendix XIV, p. 188).
Article 8 of this Convention laid down that no vessel of any of the
High Contracting Parties should engage in whaling without a licence
or certificate of notification from the said High Contracting Party,
and that “ nothing in this Article shall prejudice the right of an
High Contracting Party to require that, in addition, a licence sh
be required from his own authorities by every vessel desirous of
using his territory or territorial waters for the purpose of taking,
landing or treating whales, and such licence may be refused or
may be made subject to such conditions as may be deemed by such

High Contracting Party to be necessary or desirable, whatever the
nationality of the vessel may be,"”
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whahqg factory Anglo-Norse, with a small fieet of catchers, |

of their work was carried out in the shelter of -‘u'k‘ i[- -Hf-rh' [)‘"l mmt-
land. _The vxp.-‘}hlirm was accompanied by !\15-)‘ | It'll 1—1li11:i;’::;n.ilrgi
the Discovery Committee's scientific staff. In 1930 !J;'wm'rr 11
spent 20 days making a running survey of the entire L;:-:,ti I-:‘\ and
succeeded in obtaining much new and detailed ininrnmlimf‘ "No
harbours were found, but at most of the islands there are ;lurh;rral:ﬂ“
where a vessel may obtain some shelter. Even in the finest \\'t'.lili!t'-lt
there is a heavy swell and the coast is generally precipitous and
rocky. Where beaches exist they shelve sté«ply and there is a strong
undertow. As a consequence landing can only be made with
QIfﬁqulty, and on some islands landing is probably impossible.
Sea-ice conditions in the southern part of the group are usually
severe, and, owing to volcanic activity or heavy glacierization, there
seems little prospect that any of the islands will become of much
\'alttu: to man. They certainly provide no facilities as a whaling
centre. -

179. It is probably for these reasons that no dispute has ever
arisen about the ownership of the South Sandwich Islands. When,
in December 1908, the question arose of including this group in the
Colonial Office List as a Dependency of the Falkland Islands, the
Colonial Office were told that the British claim to these islands was
very slender ; but that as the Governor had been authorized in
September 1906 to treat them as Dependencies of the Falkland
Islands, there would seem to be no objection to including them in
the Colonial Office List, which, being an unofficial publication, would
be no bar to the consideration of any duly authenticated claim should
such be subsequently advanced in another quarter. The Governor
of the Falkland Islands was authorized in January 1909 to apply the
Seal Fishery Ordinance of the Falkland Islands (No. 1 of 1899) to
the South Sandwich Islands, and, under that Ordinance, to deal with
an application from the Cia Argentina de Pesca for a sealing licence
including the latter group. The only recent visit to the islands has
been that of the William Scoresby in November 1937, when a landing
was made on Saunders Island.

BRITISH CONTROL OF WHALING IN THE FALKLAND
ISLANDS DEPENDENCIES

180. The history of the shore whaling stations in_each of the
Dependencies has already been discussed in the preceding sections.
It is necessary, however, to give some account of the whaling industry
in its relation to British control over the Dependencies as a whole.

181. The whale fishery was first dealt with by law under Falkland
Islands Ordinance No. 3 of 1908, which made it unlawful totake
whales without a licence, and imposed royalties on each whale caught.
This system was, however, considered unsuitable. The Ordinance
was repealed and replaced by Ordinance No. 5 of 1908, and amending
Ordinances, and by separate regulations for S_uuth Georgia ,?.nd the
other Dependencies. The policy of 1908 aimed at limiting the
extent to which the pursuit of whales might be carried on and reduc-
ing the amount of waste involved to the ‘narrowest limits copsuatent
with existing rights and with not involving the companies in work
entailing an actual loss. To secure the first of these objects 1t was
decided to issue no further leases or licences, other than renewals of
annual licences already granted, and to allow no further addition to
the number of vessels authorized to catch whales. No attempt was
made to regulate the number of whales taken in any one season ;
but the shooting of whale calves, or of female whales accompanied
by calves, was prohibited.

182. During the war of 1914-18 it proved necessary to relax the
regulations for the prevention of waste of the less valuable portions
of the whales, and it was also necessary to allow the temporary
employment of additional whale catchers at Sm}th Georgia, After
the war, up to the season 1924-25, whaling operations Were conducted
on a moderate scale, and the British Government was able to maintain
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one tactory ship operated from Deception Island mltht? aef!_.z?ln [L?azr?d
30. The Hektor Whaling Company's station at Decep 1t o
was finally abandoned in 1931, and aft}jr that year thf: msha e t
were allowed to become delapidated. The Company went I:{m p
in 1935 and left as bad debts £27,000 owing to the [nJanFl evgmt:e
and £10,700 to the Falkland Islands Government for export duty

on whale oil. The Falklands debt was eventually written off.

5 i s for
175. Between 1935 and 1939 there were various proposals

establishing a new factory at Deception Island, but none have
materialized. In correspondence about one of these applications in
1937, the Governor of the Falkland Islands stated that he was
influenced not so much by revenue considerations as by a certain
feeling of uneasiness regarding the tenuous hold by the Falklands
Government over the South Shetlands area. He submitted that no
opportunity should be lost to dis.lay cm"ltrol in some wider form
than that of leasing a disused whaling station.

176. During 1940 the seven oil fuel tanks formerly owned by the
Hektor Whaling Company at Deception Island were reported to
contain between 1,500 and 7,000 tons of fuel oil.' The Admiralty
considered it important that this stock should be denied to the enemy.
Accordingly, on March 5th 1941, HM.S. Queen of Bermuda visited
the island. The oil tanks were found to be empty and showed no
sign of having been used for many years. The oil installations and
remaining coal stocks were destroyed. The history of the South
Shetland Islands and Graham Land since 1941 has been mainly
connected with Argentine and Chilean plans to extend their territorial
claims to this area, and is continued in paragraph 228.

THE SOUTH SANDWICH ISLANDS

177. The South Sandwich Islands form a curved chain of 11
volcanic islands stretching for 193 miles from north to south, the
northernmost of the group being about 290 miles east of South
Georgia. The southern part of the group was discovered by Captain
James Cook, in H.M.S. Resolution, on January 30th 1775 ;" he made
no landing. Forty-five years later, in 1819, Cook’s discoveries were
extended by Admiral Bellingshausen, with the Russian corvettes
Vostok and Mirnyi. Bellingshausen discovered the three northern-
most islands, and made a rough survey of the whole group; he
landed on Zavodovski Island. Since that date the islands must have
been sighted may times by sealers and whalers, but very few have
recorded their visits. The following are visits of which records have
been traced : Captain James Brown in the Pacific (1830), Captain
John Biscoe in the Twla (1830), Captain C. A. Larsen in the Undine
(1908), Lieutenant W. Filchner in the Desutschland (1911), Captain
O. Jorgensen in the Thulla (1911-12), Sir Ernest Shackleton in
the Endurance (1914), Commander F. Wild in the Quest (1922),
Captain H. Hansen in the Busen V1II (1927), the whaling factory
Anglo-Norse with her catchers (1927-28), R.R.S. Discovery IT
(1930), and R.R.S. William Scoresby (1937).

178. Captain C. A. Larsen’s visit in 1908 was made in the hope
of finding a site for a whaling station. Owing to the lack of harbours
he failed in his main object, but he made a close investigation of seven
of the islands, In 1911-12 a large Norwegian whale catcher the
T'hulla, spent four months near the islands. The voyage prov’ed a
commercial failure. In 1912-13 no ships visited the group, but six
Norwegian companies had optimistically taken out whaling licences
for the South Sandwich Islands. No further activities took place
until 1927, when the expanding whaling industry induced the
A/S. Tonsberg Hvalfangeri to send one of their catchers, the
Busen V11, to prospect for whales in South Sandwich waters and to
make another search for a site for a shore station. The expedition
reported that whales were plentiful, and notwithstanding the lack of
anchorages and fresh water, the Ténsberg Company applied for a
licence to work round the islands. In 1927-28 they sent out the
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the Norwegian, Captain C. A. Larsen, took the Jason south to make
a whaling reconnaissance in these waters, Although this ex n-dilfion
was also to some extent a failure, new discoveries were u:mrl‘t'lin [East
{:rah;un I,;m_d,‘ ';mtl much useful information was collected ;|h‘rl-||l
whaling pt -smln]t_{if-s, In 1893-94 Captain Larsen again commanded
a larger reconnaissance expedition, consisting of three vessels, Jason
Hertha and Castor. I ‘

173. The first modern whaling expedition to the South Shetlands
was a direct resnlt _r'rf a_crisis in the Norwegian whaling industry
in the Arctic in 1903-05. In the autumn of 1905 Mr. Alexander
Lange took the factory ship 4dmiralen and two catchers to Deception
Island. The season was a success, and in 1907-08 four companies
were operating in the South Shetlands, the total catch being about
650 whales, mainly from Bransfield Strait. In May 1907 a licence
to take whales in the territorial waters of the South Shetlands and
Graham Land for the period of one year was granted to the Sociedad
Ballenera de Magallanes, of Punta Arenas, Chile. Tn 1908 the
Newfoundland Steam Whaling Company took out a similar licence.
By 1912-13 there were 12 factory ships and 32 catchers working in
the South Shetlands area, all holding licences issued by the Falkland
Islands Government. On October 21st 1912 the Hektor Whaling
Company obtained a 21 year lease for a shore station on Deception
Island, and the first whale was hauled up there on December 24th.
Owing, however, to the lack of convenient sites and to the extended
area over which whaling was conducted in the South Shetlands, it
did not prove practicable to establish any further shore stations,
and the bulk of the whaling was carried on by floating factories.
In 1914 licences were held by eight Norwegian companies, one British
company and one Chilean company. All these licences, except that
of the Hektor Whaling Company, were subject to annual renewal.
Most of the factory ships were moored at Deception Island, but some
used Admiralty Bay. The majority of whales were taken in or near
Bransfield Strait, but in the latter part of the season they were
sometimes more plentiful further to the south-west, and some
factories would move down to anchorages in the Melchior Islands
and Port Lockroy. A Norwegian maintenance party remained
at Deception Island over the winter, and a British Stipendiary
Magistrate was resident on the island during each summer season
from 1910 to 1930. In 1912 Port Foster at Deception Island was
constituted a port of entry for shipping. A post office was maintained
by the Stipendiary Magistrate from 1912 to 1927*. Falkland Island
stamps were used, at first bearing an overprint '* Port Foster,” but
from 1913 onwards this overprint was replaced by a rubber cancella-
tion date stamp with the words * Deception Island, South Shetlands."

173¢. The following is a list of the Stipendiary Magistrates
appointed to Deception Island by the Falkland Islands Govern-
ment :—
1910-11. H. Newing (?)
1911-12. E. B. Binnie.
1912-13. W. Moyes.
1913-14. A. G. Bennett.

1922-23. A. G. Bennett and A. G.
Hardy.
J. E. Hamilton, S. Riches

and J. G. Turner.

1923-24.

1914-15. W. Barlas. 1924-25. S. Riches.

1915-16. J. 1. Wilson. 1925-268. A.G. Bennett and George
1916-17. A. G. Bennett. Bennett.

1917-18. A. G. Bennett. 1926-27. A. G. Bennett.

1918-19. A. G. Bennett. 1927-28. - Stewart.

1919-20. S. Riches. 1928-29. G. Brechin.

1920-21. J. E. Hamilton. 1920-30. G, Brechin.

1921-22. A. G. Bennett.

174. It is difficult to say exactly when local whaling in the South
Qhetlands came to an end. Prior to the season 1927-28 the lactory
ships were moored in harbours all through the season, but from then
onwards pelagic whaling was adopted on an increasing scale, Only

* It is likely that this post office was maintained until 1930 but no evidence of this can be
traced after 1927
x3
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of Grabam Land. Ellsworth himself c::::lzii:':m:d '}'M'l]klus ﬁrl‘;;}t'mlg
“ discovery "’ of Stefansson Strait, but it has since bee[;]c ime
in the United States that he conclusively _rlf-munstratpd the pen;:}lf
sularity of Graham Land and that he also discovered King George
Sound. The latter claim, however, was not put forward unt:ldflfter
this Sound had been reported by the British Graham Land Expe lt'l)on
and described in a wireless message to the Times of December 12th
1936. There can be no doubt that Ellsworth flew over am'd photo-
graphed both the Stefansson Strait area and King George VI Sound.
However, at the time he definitely did not recognize that Stefans?on
Strait is a glacier rising to 6,000 ft. above sea-level or that King
George VI Sound is in any way an unusual feature. He did not, in
fact, himself have any precise ideas about where he had been and
what he had seen in this region.*

169. The British Graham Land Expedition of 1934-37, under
Mr. J. R. Rymill, was the only large-scale British expedition that
has yet made land investigations in the southern part of the Falkland
Islands Dependencies. This expedition was promoted by the Royal
Geographical Society and had the financial supBort of the Colonial
Office. An advance party spent a month at Deception Island at
the end of 1934. The ship Penola proceeded to Port Lockroy in
January 1935 and shortly afterwards established a base in the
Argentine Islands, where a hut was built and occupied by 16 men.
From here various sledge and plane journeys were made during 1935
which elucidated much of the local geography. In February 1936
the ship moved south to Marguerite Bay, where a new base was
established on the Debenham Islands. From here important sledge
journeys were made across Graham Land to the east coast and far
southwards into King George VI Sound. Numerous reconnaissance
flights were also carried out. This expedition showed that Graham
Land, contrary to previous reports (paragraph 166), is a part of
the Antarctic continent, and that all of the channels reported by
Sir Hubert Wilkins are in reality glaciers. Other important resulfs
were the surveying of the southern part of Graham Land, the
discovery of King George VI Sound and research on the natural history
of the locality.

170. In 1938 plans were well advanced for another expedition to
continue the work of the British Graham Land Expedition, this time
under the leadership of Dr. G.C.L. Bertram. The plans were approved
by the Council of the Royal Geographical Society in November 1938,
but had to be abandoned owing to the war. It had been proposed to
establish a number of small parties of scientists to carry out detailed
research work and to take advantage of King George VI Sound as
the obvious route for further explorations to the south.

171. Since the outbreak of war the exploration of south Graham
Land has been continued by the United States Antarctic Service,
1939-41. This expedition had one base in the Ross Dependency
at the Bay of Whales (paragraphs 338-342) and a second base at
Neny Fjord in Marguerite Bay, south-west Graham Land (paragraphs
277-280). During a series of important flights and sledge journeys
knowledge of the east coast of Graham Land was extended south-
wards to lat. 77° S,, and the southern part of King George VI Sound
and of Alexander I Land were surveyed to the western boundary of
the Falkland Islands Dependencies.

Commercial Exploitation and British Administration

172. In 1892-93 four ships of the Dundee whaling fleet were
sent to Erx_abus and Terror Gulf (on the east side of T rinity Peninsula).
As a whaling venture this was a failure, for they were only equipped
to kill Right whales and could not capture the much larger Antarctic
species. However, a number of seals were taken. [n the same year

* This conclusion is based not only an a consideration of
but also on personal correspondence and discussions which
British Grabham Land Expedition. In view of the extreme di
from the air and Mr. Ellsworth’s lack of technical whility, th

Mr. Ellsworth's published accounts
ho had later with members of the
fliculty of interpreting such country
15 result was not unexpected. i
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December 1934 to January 1935.

Du:rm'ery _H spent seven weeks on a running survey of the

South Shetlands, making a great advance in the charting
of the group, and visiting also Melchior Islands, Port
Lockroy, Trinity Peninsula, etc. Innumerable soundings
were made, and miscellaneous observations and collecting
carried out.

December 1936 to January 1937.

Discovery II spent a month continuing and extending the
previous survey of the South Shetlands with strnilar
miscellaneous research. The latest Admiralty charts are
based on these surveys.

February 1938.

1'1"1'1-!4'&?{:- Scoresby called at Deception Island and made a
running survey of Bridgeman Island in the course of a
whale-marking cruise around the South Shetlands.

Apart from the above instances, the Discovery Committee’s ships
have on many occasions been engaged in oceanographical research
and in studying ice conditions in the neighbourhood of the South
Shetlands without actually visiting the islands.

168. On December 20th 1928 Sir Hubert Wilkins made a flight
from Deception Island down the east coast of Graham Land to
about lat. 71° 30’ S. He saw much new land, but mistook glaciers
for channels (Crane Channel, Casey Channel, Lurabee Channel and
Stefansson Strait), which appeared to separate Graham Land from
the continent. At the furthest point reached he dropped a Union
Jack on Hearst Land (see p. 161). He had hoped to make explorations
further west in the Pacific sector, but did not on this occasion go
outside the boundaries of the Falkland Islands Dependencies. In the
following season, with the help of the William Scoresby, Sir Hubert
Wilkins ln]unnt-d to fly from Graham Land to the Ross Sea, and he
carried a Royal Commission to take possession of any territory then
unknown which he might discover (paragraph 102). Owing to
adverse weather conditions, however, he was only able to make several
short-distance flights, of which the most successful were (1) from
Deception Island due south over Graham Land, practically to the
western limits of the Weddell Sea ; (2) from the edge of the pack
ice to the south of Charcot Land and back, proving that Charcot
Land 1s an island and not part of the mainland ; and (3) from lat.
70°S., long. 101° W. southwards to appmximatvly lat, 73° S., where he
failed to locate the mainland of the Antarctic continent (paragraph
424). During the second of these flights, on December 29th 1929,

he dropped Union Jacks and prr.u:lamatinna on Charcot Island,
claiming the area for Great Britam (sée P- 162).

167. In the course of extensive Antarctic voyages the Norwegian
ship Norvegia made brief visits to Deception Island 1n the seasons
1928-29 and 1930-31. A member of the expedition (Olal Holtedahl)
subsequently published a valuable report on these and other islands,
but his observations Were mostly made from Norwegian whaling
ships.

168. In the season 1934-35, Mr. Lincoln Ellsworth planned to
fly across the Antarctic continent from Graham Land to the Ross
Sea. Adverse weather conditions compelled him to postpone the
flight, but, on January 3rd 1935, he was able to make a shr:rt recon-
naissance flight over the Nordenskjold Coast of Trimity Peninsula.
In November 1935, Mr. Lincoln Eﬂswortl_'a ln;}(it“ a second and suc-
cessful attempt to cross the Antarctic, flying rom Dundee Island to
the Bay of Whales. This was an important flight, 'h_ut its m;.;mf:wancc
applics; mainly to the Pacific sector (].‘.‘_Ell’:tgl‘:lpl'! 430), .aud it .a,.]n.nnt
be said to have added much accurate information to the geography
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The Belgica was
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the mapping of the west coast of Gr tham hip to winter in the

beset in the Bellingshausen Sea, and was the first s
Antarctic pack ice.

162. In 1902-03, the Swedish expedition under Dr. Otto
Nordenskjsld discovered some new land and carried out 1rnportat,;:t
work off the north-east coast of Graham'La,n_d. His ship, the
Antarctic, was lost in the Weddell Sea. Parties wintered on shore at
Snow Hill Island, Hope Bay and Paulet Island, and much research
was carried out, notably on the geology and biology of the region.
An Argentine naval officer was a member of one of the wintering
parties, and the whole expedition was rescued by the Argentine
corvette Uruguay.

163. Important and extensive surveys of the west side of Graham
Land were gf:!dl‘,‘ by the French expeditions of 1903-05 and 1908-10
(more particularly the latter) under Dr. J. B. Charcot in the Frangais
and the Pourquoi Pas ¢ The Frangais wintered at Port Charcot,
Booth (Wandel) Island, and the Powrquoi Pas ¢ wintered at Port
Circumcision, Petermann Island. The published results of these two
expeditions included a number of charts together with various papers
on the natural history of these regions.

164. Sir Ernest Shackleton’s expedition of 1914-17 did not
explore the South Shetlands or Graham Land, but, after the loss of
the Endurance in the Weddell Sea, 22 of his party spent a considerable
period at Elephant Island and were able to carry out some research
on the natural history of the island. The stranded party was
rescued by the Chilean Government ship Yelcho (paragraph 259).
In 1921-22 two members of a British expedition, T. W. Bagshawe
and M. C. Lester, wintered ashore at Andvord Bay in west Graham
Land and made observations on natural history, tides and meteoro-
logical conditions. In 1922, after the death of Sir Ernest Shackleton
at South Georgia, his ship, the Quest, visited Elephant Island and
landings were made at Cape Lookout and Minstrel Bay.

165. During the 12 years from 1927 to 1938 the ships of the
Discovery Committee have made a long series of visits to the South
Shetlands and the coasts and islands of Graham Land, and have
carried out a comprehensive programme of surveying, hydrology,
sounding, natural history and collecting (see Fig. 13). These
activities may be listed as follows :—

February to April 1927.

Discovery visited Deception Island, the Palmer Archipelago
and King George Island ; seven weeks spent in surveying,
marine research, collecting, etc.

February 1929.

William Scoresby visited Deception Island and carried out an

oceanographical survey of Bransfield Strait.
November 1929 to February 1930.

William Scoresby acted as mother ship for Sir Hubert Wilkins'
second expedition, visiting Deception Island, Melchior
Islands, Port Lockroy, Beascochea Bay (Graham Land), etc.

December 1930 to February 1931.

Discovery 11 visited Deception Island, Marin Darbel Islands,
Port Lockroy and Melchior Islands, with further surveying,
an oceanographical survey of the Bransfield Strait, and
miscellaneous research,

November 1932.

Discovery 11 again carried out oceanographical observations
in Bransfield Strait, visiting Deception Island and including
further topographical observations

February 1933.

Discovery Il continued oceanographical ob ti i
Bransfield Strait, visiting Gibbs %Slalild, Pen;u?:lr;:laﬁgf eti:.
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were virtually exterminated (see footnc U
i i S gt g I‘Ilt_.-ri (see footnote on p. 143). A very large
| e ke ey participated in this slaughter, and the history of
! ese early years is somewhat obscure (see Appendix X, pp. 180-182)
'

' 159. The rest of the South Shetlands and the other parts of
Graham Land and the associated islands were discovered [,)itﬁt?i.-f;]{’i-ll
during a subsequent period of more than a century. The following
is not a complete list of explorers, but gives the names of those -.»-113
reported some part of the land for the first time* (see Fig. lU}.. -

William Smith Briti :

l S 0 ¥itish " <. .. 1819, 1820-21
Igdwa:d Bransfield British .. .. 1820
George P_owell British 1820-21, 1821-22
James Weddell British 1820-21, 1821-22,

1822-23

Thaddeus Bellingshausen. . 1821

Russian

’ N. B. Palmer i's .. United States .. 1821
- Edward Hughes and James
Hoseason British .. .o 1824
Henry Foster British 1829
John Biscoe o .. British 1832
Dumont D'Urville .. .. French 1838
James Ross : ... Botish . ;. 1842-43
Eduard Dallmann .. German .. 1873-74
T. Robertson it British 1892-93
C. A. Larsen Norwegian .. 1893-94
A. de Gerlache Belgian .. .. 1898
Otto Nordenskjold Swedish .. 1802-03
J. B. Charcot French .. .. 1903-05, 1908-10
Hubert Wilkins British .. .. 1928-29, 1929-30
Lincoln Ellsworth .. United States .. 1934-35, 1935
J. R. Rymill ¥ British 1934-37
Richard B. Black United States 194041

160. After Smith's discovery of the South Shetlands, Edward

Bransfield was ordered by the senior British naval officer at

Valparaiso to survey the iclands in 1820. He produced a chart of the

South Shetlands and of Trinity Peninsula. Some of the early British

! sealers also made charts of this region, the best being those of George
' Powell and James Weddell.

' 161. In 1821 the Russian Admiral, Thaddeus von Bellingshausen,
leader of a major expedition which circumnavigated the Antarctic,
discovered Alexander I Land far to the south-west of Graham Land.
He also made a running survey of parts of the South Shetlands. In
1829 the surveying was considerably extended by Captain Henry
Foster, in H.M.S. Chanticleer, who visited various parts of the South
Shetlands, and took formal possession of Hoseason Island in the
Palmer Archipelago on January 7th 1829 (see p. 158). In 1832 Captain

John Biscoe, in the Tula, discovered Adelaide Island and the main-

land coast northwards to the

Palmer Archipelago.

He named this

coast Graham Land, and took formal possession on February 21st

1832 (see p. 158).

probably on Anvers Island
Dumont D'Urville, with the French
vessels Astrolabe and Zelée, explored part of Trinity Peninsula in the
dition to various parts of the Antarctic.
previous discovery, he called it Louis
In 1842-43 Captain James Ross, with H.M.S.
Evebus and Tervor, explored the islands off the east side of Trinity
This again was an incident among explorations elsewhere,
landed on Cockburn Island and took
formal possession of the idJand and contignous lands (see p. 159), In
1873-74 Captain E. Dallmann, in the Gronland, discovered Bismarck
Strait and made surveys in the Palmer Archipelago.
Belgian expedition under A.
: and made

Commandant ].S.C.

course of an important expe
Being unaware of Bransfield's

Philippe Peninsula.

Peninsula.

but on January 6th 1843 he

de Gerlache Strait

« For a full list, see Appendix I, pp: 142-155.
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